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The railroad passenger depot now owned by the City of Brookhaven is a
rectangular shaped solid brick facility with a red tile roof. The
building is actually in two separate parts, the north part and smaller
being the old freight building separated by a breeze-way from the
south building, which is the passenger depot, ticket office and
railroad official offices and restrooms. The passenger section of

the building is divided into two parts, which was significant of the
era in which it was constructed in 1907, since it had facilities for
whites and blacks.

The building, itself, faces Whitworth Avenue on the west side and the
south bound and north bound tracks of the Illinois Central Gulf Railroad
are on the east side. The railroad passengers boarded passenger trains
south bound to New Orleans and north bound to Chicago from the east

side of the building.

Brick pavers cover the entire area from the building to the railroad
tracks through the breeze-way and on the west side to the sidewalks
of Whitworth Avenue.

The building has a basement that was used to house furnaces to heat

the building and a coal chute was on the east side of the building in
which railroad cars could dump coal to fuel the boilers in the basement.
The basement is still functional, but is used only for storage at this
time.

The floors are hardwood and the ceilings and walls are made of wood.
In the freight depot the floors are concrete and a set of scales are
still operational that would weigh items that were shipped by rail.
The freight office is still designed in such a way to receive freight
from the parking area to the north of the terminal and store it in the
freight office awaiting for the arrival of the trains.

The building has solid copper valleys, gutters and downspouts, which
are in excellent shape, even today. The building, besides being a
masonary type, is trimmed with concrete structures around the doors
and windows. This is apparent as you examine the photographs attached
to this application. In addition, the plat showing the location of
the station with regards to the railroad tracks and the streets down-
town is also attached to the deed.
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Brookhaven was founded by Samuel Jayne in the year 1818 and it became
a railroad terminal after 1851. The Brookhaven, Jackson and Great
NorthernRailroad completed its tracks through Brookhaven in March, 1858.

A frame depot was erected in the 1870's near the present site of the
existing depot and the present structure, sought to be designated as a
landmark, was erected to replace the former frame building and opened
on November 20, 1907. The first ticket was purchased by B. D. Grizzard
of New York City. The former frame depot was located just north of

the present station and was demolished in March of 1908.

The Mississippi Central Railroad was completed from Brookhaven to
Hattiesburg in 1906, and the Brookhaven and Pearl River Railroad was
also terminated in Brookhaven and ran to Monticello. The mainline

of that time was the north-south line, being the Illinois Central
Railroad. With all three of these lines serving Brookhaven, and using
the new station, after it was opened, there were for a time 18 passenger
trains a day in and out of Brookhaven.

The movement to have the new station erected in Brookhaven was spear-
headed by an incorporated group known as the Progressive Union, which
can be considered the first incorporated Chambeér of Commerce of
Brookhaven. The new station was then known as the Union Depot.

The plans for the new station were drawn by F. D. Chase, an architect
for the Illinois Central Railroad Company, who was then about 30
years of age. He graduated from the Mississippi Institute of
Technology and left the services of the railroad company in 1910.

The Union Depot was the hub of activity for Brookhaven and the surroundinc
territory with the arrival and departure of politicians, noted artists

of the time who played Heuck's Opera House in Brookhaven, Whitworth
College performers, as well as students and Chataqua performers.

The general movement of private passengers through this station had

a profound effect on the growth and development of Brookhaven as a
business, social and educational center.
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FEIMA]JOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

None - Data was obtained from private citizens who kept records of
significant events in the history of this community. No known

"official" history has been compiled although many have started on
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Bounded on the west by S. Whitworth Ave., on the south by Cherokee
Street, on the north by Monticello Street and on the east by the
property belonging to the Illinois Central Gulf Railroad Company

and its south bound railroad tracks. City property is 16 feet from .
the center line on the south bound tracks. o
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After the construction of the mainline of the railroad through Brookhaven,
a large number of homes were built up and down both sides of the track
facing the street and drives adjoining the railroad property.

Brookhaven was originally located some distance from its present site

at an area known as Ole Brook. Mr. Whitworth, one of the founding father:
of Brookhaven, offered the railroad free right of way through his property
if the railroad would change its location in this area. The railroad
obliged and the tracks are where they are presently located causing the
bulk of the community to move approximately one mile to the north To#
Brookhaven's present location today.

The general architecture of the building is representative of the more
substantial railroad stations built throughout America in that era and wit
a large number of these structures being demolished and falling into dis-
repair through disuse it is important that this structure, having been
acquired by the City of Brookhaven, being preserved and designated as an
historic landmark.



